Unapproved-

Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes
Monday, April 26, 2010

Attendance: Chairman Fred Kelley, Vice-Chair Carleton Robfgglectman Joe Duarte,
Selectman Amanda Soares, Selectman Richard Snadv,Administrative Assistant Andria
Hansen

7:00 p.m. Chairman Kelley called the Public Meeting to ardad immediately followed with
the Pledge of Allegiance.

Senator Boutin to present Board with flag for the 8ldiers Monument. Senator Boutin
presented the Board with a flag for the Soldiersideal. He explained the flag was flown over
the State Capital. The flag is for the SoldiersnMment located on High Street. Senator Boutin
asked the Board for a picture of the historic @istmap for his office, he thought this would be a
good way to represent the district. Senator Botdld the Board Candia has very brigtit 4
graders. The Moore Schodf graders recently visited the State House and laiethie answers

to the questions they were asked. The Board #thSlenator Boutin for presenting the flag.

The Board to open to sealed bids for Town Hall rooand Moore Park fence. Bid for fence:
There was one bid received for the Moore Park fer®electman Robie read from quote. The
amount quoted for labor and installation of theckewas $1,575. Selectman Robie motioned to
accept the bid from AQ Fence Company and they gdeoui certificate of insurance before they
start the job. Seconded by Selectman Soareswék in favor. Motion carriedBid for the
roof: Selectman Robie opened the sealed bids for tbie rdhe first bid opened was D/ P
Construction with a quoted amount of $4,500. Tkeosd bid opened was from Frazier
Construction with a quoted amount of $7,200. Thidt bid opened was from In-Law
Construction with a quoted amount of $5,040. Tast bid opened was from Dave Murray
Construction with a quoted amount of $4,800. Seiaa Snow asked if all of the bids were
consistent with the RFQ. Selectman Robie statatiith was going to abstain from voting this
evening. It was noted that In-Law Construction theé work on the fire department roof.
Selectman Duarte thought they did a good job. Hesidered this a plus, but would like
feedback from the Board. Chairman Kelley thoutety should narrow it down to two bids.
The Board eliminated the highest and the lowest @idis left Dave Murray Construction and
In-Law Construction to decide from. Selectman $sauggested having the other contactors
come in, so they could meet them. Roger Demanthme-loaw Construction noted this is why
he attended the meeting. Selectman Snow questibtieely are all qualified why not go with
the lowest bid. Isn’t that the purpose of the biddorocess? Chairman Kelley replied he is not
familiar with the lowest bidder or the work he doeSelectman Snow questioned if they were
going to have someone supervising the job. @rairKelley commented that this is hard when



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 042P&0

four of the Selectmen are not in this line of wofkelectman Soares stated she wouldn’t have a
problem with In-Law Construction doing the workheSwould have liked to have met the other
contractors, but Mr. Demanche is at the meetiBglectman Snow moved to accept the lowest
bid which is D/P Construction. Seconded by Select8@ares.Motion failed due to a tied vote.
Selectman Snow and Selectman Soares were in fagtmctman Duarte and Chairman Kelley
were not and Selectman Robie abstain8electman Duarte felt that the gentleman frorhdn-
Construction is here and his work is good, so heleviike to award him the bid. Fire Chief
Young asked if the contractors were told to be heZbairman Kelley replied most people will
show up if they put in a bid. Citizen Mary Giracsdmmented that Mr. Murray has done work
for her and he is an excellent carpenter. SelectBwaarte asked if she was happy with Mr.
Murray’s work. Citizen Mary Girard replied he isgnod worker. Selectman Soares felt
whoever they pick would do good workhairman Kelley motioned to accept the bid from ®av
Murray’s Construction for the quoted amount of $08 Seconded by Selectman Soares.
Selectman Snow, Selectman Soares, Selectman Rumat€hairman Kelley were in favor and
Selectman Robie abstained. Motion carried on a wbtéto 1.

The Board to consider Fire Chief Young's recommendaon to appoint Jason Hall and
Keith Blevens as firefighters. It was noted that Jason Hall and Keith Blevensbaté Candia
residents. Fire Chief Young explained to the Badat Mr. Hall is a full time firefighter in
Derry and he has a lot of credentials. He fely tiwere both very good candidates. Selectman
Robie motioned to appoint Jason Hall and Keith Bfev as firefighters based on Fire Chief
Young’s recommendation. Seconded by Selectmant®uadl were in favor. Motion carried.

Swap Shop and burn pit location: Fire Chief Young noted there was a proposal tmge the
configuration of the burn pits at the recycling tsrio make room for the new swap shop. The
proposal is to take the two horseshoes (burn gitd)make a bigger one, then put the swap shop
beside it. He didn't like the idea of losing thveot pits, because it works well. In addition, he
felt there wasn’t enough distance between the pusand where they wanted to put the swap
shop. Those burn pits need a permit filled out gy Forest Ranger and himself. This is a
commercial permit that allows them to burn in tlag.d This is a yearly permit. Neil Bilodeau is
the district ranger. It's his opinion that the gashop would be two close to the burn pits. He
used the flame height times 3 or 4 of the distan¢eu can get a flame height of forty or fifty
feet out of those pits. He would want a minimum160 feet for the distance. There’s not
enough distance between the two with what is bpiogosed. There are no rules or laws, but it
was the Forest Rangers opinion. Selectman Soated it is definitely a safety concern. She
agreed with the Forest Ranger’s opinion. She didant to get rid of the two burn pits, because
it works well. Chairman Kelley stated if they gothvthe proposed design it would kill the
traffic flow. He thought they were going to nesaime fill and make a spot. Fire Chief Young
reiterated that having two pits is a good idea.ai®han Kelley mentioned they were going up
one more cement block on the burn pits. They Isavee concerns about the flames. Chairman
Kelley thanked Fire Chief Young.

Page2 of 9



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 042P&0

The Board to discuss eight abatement requests reved. Gerald & Raquel Spaulding:
Selectman Robie read the abatement recommendat&giectman Robie motioned to deny
Gerald & Raquel Spaulding’'s abatement request based/ision Appraisals and Assessor
Tammy Jameson’s recommendation. Seconded by Céxailgalley. All were in favor. Motion
carried. Tony & Andrea Cresta: Selectman Robie read the abatement recommendation
Selectman Robie motioned to grant Tony and Andresst@s abatement request based on
Vision Appraisals and Assessor Tammy Jameson’swawndation for the amount of $92,600.
Seconded by Selectman Snow. All were in favor. titMo carried. Kathryn Tierney:
Selectman Robie read the abatement recommendat@aiectman Robie motioned to grant
Kathryn Tierney's abatement request based on Visigpraisals and Assessor Tammy
Jameson’s recommendation for the amount of $26,8¥¢onded by Selectman Snow. All were
in favor. Motion carried. Peter & Marilyn Butt: Selectman Robie read the abatement
recommendation. Selectman Robie motioned to destgrPand Marilyn Butt's abatement
request based on Vision Appraisals and Assessormiamamison’s recommendation.
Selectman Soares asked if they would be abatin@ih@unts for 2007 and 2008. Selectman
Robie replied the applications weren't filed by Mart™ for both of those years. He noted if we
start doing this for one we do it for everyone. felé they shouldn’t abate the amounts for 2007
and 2008. Seconded by Selectman Snow. All weravor. Motion carried. Michael &
Kristen Davis: Selectman Robie read the abatement recommendati®alectman Robie
motioned grant Michael and Kristen Davis’ abatenteofuest based on Vision Appraisals and
Assessor Tammy Jamison’s recommendation for thauataf $17,500. Seconded by Chairman
Kelley. All were in favor. Motion carried.Judson Haight: Selectman Robie read the
abatement recommendation. Selectman Robie motitmeteny Judson Haight's abatement
request based on Vision Appraisals and Tammy Jarsisecommendation. Seconded by
Selectman Duarte. Selectman Snow noted this mgsideuld like to be taxed as residential,
even though he is in a commercial area. This bas bone before for some people in town. He
felt they should ensure that next year Mr. Judsqrgperty is taxed as residential not as
commercial. They should accept his application2@t0 to be taxed as residential. Selectman
Snow noted there is a statute that says if you lEbheuse in the commercial zone you can
request to be taxed as residential. Selectman Soggested they make this part of the motion
and have Assessor Tammy Jamison assess him aentgdid Chairman Kelley asked if
everyone on the street was assessed this waycti®ale Snow replied yes if they ask for it and
they met the criteria. Chairman Kelley noted tiauld put in a recommendation for Assessor
Tammy Jamison to do this next year. Citizen Gaoykyclarified if Mr. Haight purchased the
land after it was zoned commercial and he warntsxid as residential; when he goes to sell the
property he will gain the status of the commerz@ie. He questioned where is the equity as far
as the tax payers are concerned. Selectman Srit@nated there is a statute that says you can
do it. Citizen Gary York asked if Mr. Haight baseld request on the statute. He added in all
fairness you need to find out when the property paehased. Selectman Robie agreed with
Selectman Snow. Selectman Duarte asked how wdéehanflhe sells the property. Selectman

Page3 of 9



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 042P&0

Robie felt that was Mr. Haight’s business. SelestrBoares stated if you change the tax map to
residential it would be taxed as residential. &eban Robie explained all they will do is change
his tax card. Selectman Snow clarified this wdaddfor 2010 and to deny the 2009 abatement.
Selectman Robie motioned to deny Judson Haight'ateaient request based on Vision
Appraisals and Tammy Jamison’s recommendation or@k by Selectman Snow. All were in
favor. Selectman Snow moved to accept the 200%emdmmt request as a 2010 abatement
request from Judson Haight to tax his propertyesgdential even though it is in a commercial
zone. Seconded by Selectman Robie. All were imrfavMotion carried. Louis & Beth
Gomez: Selectman Robie read the abatement recommendafelectman Robie motioned to
grant Louis and Beth Gomez's abatement requestdbaseVision Appraisals and Assessor
Tammy Jamison’s recommendation for the amount of(]¥. Seconded by Selectman Snow.
All were in favor. Motion carried. Jon Kobel: Selectman Robie read the abatement
recommendation. Selectman Robie motioned to denyKbbel's abatement request based on
Vision Appraisals and Assessor Tammy Jamison’smeeendation. Seconded by Selectman
Snow. All were in favor. Motion carried.

Superintendant of Cemeteries Jerry Becker to discis fee increases for the cemetery.
Superintendant of Cemeteries Jerry Becker went @aygoposed fee schedule (see attached). He
would like to go to $200 for a gravesite and $2@0D perpetual care for the gravesite. He
explained with the current fee for perpetual careosts as much to cut 4 graves as it does 1
grave and the lots vary from size to size. He imeetl corner markers are currently $225, he
found a place where he can get them for $140hey do it this way $85.00 comes back to the
town for us to install the graves and markers. ddded a charge to move corner markers. A
cremation site would cost $100 and $100 for peqdetare. It's less expensive, because its half
the size of grave site. Selectman Duarte askdée ilooked at the surrounding communities.
Mr. Becker replied yes and there was one town \\ather fees and that's Windham. They
charge $100 per grave site and $100 for perpetual cHe noted some of the places are doing
away with the perpetual care and calling it a neiahce fee, because cemeteries are included in
the parks and rec departments. Deerfield did awitty their perpetual care; they charge $200
for a grave site which includes the perpetual cdte.explained in Candia the towns people pay
for most of the work at the cemeteries. He suggkedbing away with perpetual care and call it a
maintainance fee. They would set it up as a sépa@ount and they could use the money to
buy equipment, etc. He explained with perpetue thaey can’t touch any of the money except
for the interest on it. It has to stay in that@oa for as long as they have the cemeteries. This
is something that should be addressed later otect8®an Soares asked if they could definitely
get $140 for the corner markers. Mr. Becker ex@dithey are charging $240 right now, but
people are paying to have the corner markers puthie $225 would be for them to set the
corner markers. If you let someone put the comarkers in, you still have to mark it out and
make sure they put them in low enough. Chairmeltell asked what the cremation prices were
before. Mr. Becker noted they were the same @&cbuying a grave site. Mr. Becker explained

Paged of 9



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 042P&0

that if someone wanted to buy a couple of moreagdwnear their lot), they would place corner
markers near the lot. Selectman Snow added iinastases the number of graves that you have
in a specific lot. Selectman Soares noted she'tdmdwve a problem with this. Selectman Snow
guestioned the procedure for increasing fees,issaHegislative function or a Board function.
Chairman Kelley noted this has been addressedeirpdist and felt the Board could handle it
because they are the Cemetery Trustees. Selecdman questioned if they should have a
public hearing. Selectman Robie stated they aeeCmetery Trustees and they can make a
recommendion. He suggested Mr. Becker brings topgsed fee increase to the Cemetery
Trustees and then it will go to the Selectmenle@man Snow referred to the sale of graves and
RSA 80:80. Selectman Robie replied RSA 80:80 stdie Selectmen can sell town property.
Citizen Gary York thought a public hearing woulddggpropriate. Selectman Soares mentioned
that Raymond had a public hearing when they chatiysd fees. Selectman Snow thought the
prices were very reasonable and this is somethieg should have done a long time ago.
Citizen Joanne Beckwith clarified that increasapgo $400 for gravesite and maintenance. Mr.
Becker explained perpetual care encompassed at I$2G0D and a person was paying $200
whether they were paying for one grave or four oren The grave itself would be $200 and the
perpetual care would be $200. If you currently lomg grave it would cost $300. Selectman
Robie stated the idea is good, but when you hafamély buy four lots, the perpetual care is
currently $200. He thought this was reasonable sHggested if someone buys one lot they
ought to put a $50 perpetual care fee on it (Ujpto lots). If you buy six lots it should be $300.
They need to get this to the Trustees of the Cemestand then it should go to the Selectmen so
they can have a public hearing. He thought evamgtihboked good but it needs some minor
adjustments. He felt that $200 per lot was redsierand they shouldn’t get the cost up too high.
Selectman Robie reiterated they should discussathi€emetery Trustees. Road Agent Lewis
thought the price of lot should include perpetwusiec Selectman Soares felt that perpetual care
should be changed to a maintenance fee. Citizary &irard asked if there was a set of rules
and regulations for cemeteries. She noted whenbslight her plot she was told that she
couldn’t do certain things. People have been pigntrees and she thought they couldn't.
Selectman Snow noted they were in the processvaialging rules and regulations.

The Board to reconsider the reappointments of JudiLindsey and Betsy Kruse to the
Conservation Commission. Chairman Kelley motioned to reappoint Judi Lindseyl Betsy
Kruse to the Conservation Commission as full mesbe3econded by Selectman Soares. All
were in favor. Motion carried.

The Board to consider forming a Highway Safety Commttee. Chief McGillen explained that
Highway Safety kicked back one of our grants. Heeddhey needed to form a Highway Safety
Committee or they will not be able to apply for aafety grants. He called LGC and they said
it's up to the Board to form a committee. Thererérany guidelines. He asked other towns and
it's usually someone from the Fire Department, éDepartment, a Selectman, and a resident.

Page5 of 9



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 042P&0

Chief McGillen noted they can meet on an as nebdsts. Selectman Snow motioned to form a
Highway Safety Committee which consists of the [Ereef, Police Chief, Road Agent, and the
Chairman of the Board of Selectmen. Seconded WgcB®ean Soares. All were in favor.
Motion carried.

The Board to address increase in health insuranceeductibles. Selectman Robie explained
this issue was in regards to when the Police Deyart came to the Board with a list of
concerns. This encompasses all of the employedsimsurance. Selectman Duarte explained
when you look at the deducible from 2009 to 201@ent from $250 to $1,000 and this was a
burden for the employees. He would like to recometh¢hat they move the difference in
deductibles to what they paid in 2009. He notemtels a $12,000 difference. Selectman Robie
explained they took on a new insurance policy faBt The employees deductable increased
from $250 to $1,000, so we could get a cheaper rBle family plan went from $750 to $3,000.
The Police Department brought this to the Boardisndbn and it's a burden on some of the
employees. Selectmen’s Assistant Eastman putheget list of employees and the plans that
they have. When the Insurance Broker came irethvas a plan in the same deductable range,
but the Board opted not to go that route. Thecggolas $20,000 more. Some towns would take
the $20,000 put it in a fund, pay the higher ratel ahey could draw from it if needed.
Selectman Robie stated we have some funds availaller insurance line. He suggested they
use some of the funds. The employee will pay itis¢ $250 and we will use the funds they have
in reserve to offset. He felt where the employdein't get raises this year, this would be a
token of appreciation. He noted the maximum theylaidhave to spend would be $12,000.
Selectman Snow asked if we looked at the possilmlitgoing into a bigger pool (i.e. with the
school). Selectman Robie thought this was a vegdgoption for our employees this year.
Selectman Snow noted they need to look at thisyeyear. He added that he would like a work
session with the Insurance Broker next fall. Setect Duarte motioned to take the 2010
deductibles for the health insurance and reverntbhack to 2009 to assist employees with their
deductibles. Seconded by Selectman Robie. Alewefavor. Motion carried. Chief McGillen
thanked the Board and noted his employees willgpeeiative.

Approval of Previous Minutes: Public Meeting Minutes of 4/14/10. The public meeting
minutes of April 12" and April 14" were deferred to the May f@neeting.

Other Business:

Exit 3 Committee: Chairman Kelley asked if they are keeping the Cdtem together or
disbanding. Selectman Snow noted they establishBtiergy and Economic Committee and
they appointed a couple of members to it. Theywkhocombine it in the Exit 3 Committee.
Selectman Duarte thought that people might be ¢psiterest. He sent memo out to committee
noting there hasn’t been much interest and thegxplored every avenue. He suggested

Page6 of 9



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 042P&0

keeping the committee formed and if anything camehe committee would ready be together.
Selectman Robie was in favor of keeping the Ex@d@nmittee together. He suggested talking
with people every couple of months. Selectman Snoted there are a number of things that
could be done to encourage business in town. cthed® Snow reiterated they should make a
larger Regional Economic Committee and combineith whe Exit 3 Committee. Chairman
Kelley didn’t know what was happening with the Rewil Economic Committee. Selectman
Duarte noted they have two members and their doinge regional things. Selectman Snow
thought there were two committees a regional afmta. Chairman Kelley stated he will find
out what is going on with the Regional Economic @uttee and talk with Scott Komisarek.

Wood chip pile at the park: Chairman Kelley asked what was happening withwthed chip
pile. Selectman Snow replied that he is takingligepile and spreading to smaller piles. The
smaller piles will be spread out by volunteers.

Waste Management numbers: Selectman Duarte noted he went over some ofdbgcling
numbers and it costs a lot to haul that stuff. yTined 127 tons this year compared to 98 tons last
year. He’'ll have an update month by month. é&lethis was quite an increase in the hauling
numbers.

Recycling Center toilet flower pots: Selectman Soares noted that everyone has their ow
opinion on the toilets, but she felt the Board rsetedcome to a consensus on this. They have to
come to a consensus or a decision that everyoreesa@n. Selectman Robie replied that
Selectmen Duarte and Chairman Kelley were gointalio with Chuck about this. Chairman
Kelley asked the residents in attendance if theyewe with the toilet flower pots. The
majority of the residents were fine with them. e8éinan Robie stated he didn't see people
putting them in their front yard. Chairman Kellagded the town paid 1.5 million dollars for a
new facility, he didn’t want to see toilets ther8electman Snow asked the Board to take a vote
on this. Selectman Soares stated this is notMeryene and there is a conflict, so let’'s set this
straight. Selectman Robie noted there are a labokervative people in town who won'’t say
anything. Chairman Kelley motioned to remove tbdets. Selectman Robie and Chairman
Kelley were in favor. Selectman Snow and Select®aares were opposed. Selectman Duarte
abstained. Motion failed due to a tied vote. &ehan Soares called for another vote. Chairman
Kelley motioned to remove toilets form recyclinghter. Selectman Soares, Selectman Robie,
and Chairman Kelley were in favor. Selectman Duabstained and Selectman Snow was
opposed. Motion carried on a vote of 3 to 2

Legal Advice: Selectman Soares asked if everything goes thrthugtiolder regarding legal

advice. She questioned if there was anything oovlton Rod because she didn't see it.
Selectman Snow noted he had a concern on a rexgaitdocument and it didn’t come from the
Board. This wasn't discussed as a Board. SeletiRabie asked what he was talking about.

Pager of 9



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 042P&0

Selectman Snow stated he was talking about CuRead and they never voted on this.
Selectman Robie replied there was nothing to dgsc&electman Soares stated we were notified
on this and it was just a notification. SelectnRobie stated it has nothing to do with the town.
Selectman Snow replied what if one of us said weewsterested in this. Selectman Robie
reiterated there was nothing discuss and it hakimptto do with us, we weren’t interested.
Chairman Kelley noted they will try to keep SeleatnSnow better informed on legal issues.

Comments on papers: Selectman Soares asked the Board to not put catsroa the papers in
the sign folder. These documents are permaneatdend shouldn’'t be written on. Chairman
Kelley noted we always did it this way. She thaugbmments could be written on a sticky note.

Cemetery records: Superintendent of Cemeteries Jerry Becker adkeel could have a key to
the office, so he can get to the file cabinet (witt Cemetery records). Selectman Robie asked
if he could get a hold of Selectman Snow and ethirway. If that person is not available then
go down the line. Chairman Kelley asked Mr. Bedkdre had copies of all of the paperwork.
He felt Mr. Becker should be able to keep the papgt at his house. It shouldn’t be in the
office. Selectman Snow noted the office is goimgniake copies and convert them to a PDF file.
Mr. Becker commented that he has been the Supedaie for two months and he would like an
answer this evening. Chairman Kelley agreed thé- Ril2 is a good idea, but it is time
consuming. The files should be at Mr. Becker'sseowlr. Becker asked Selectman Snow why
he had the copies at his house, when he’s Supedene of Cemeteries. He questioned if
Selectman Snow had a trust issue. Selectman Rubigoned to give Superintendent of
Cemeteries Jerry Becker the files and allow hirkdep them at his house and make the copies
within a year. Seconded by Chairman Kelley. Selao Soares, Selectman Duarte, Selectman
Robie, and Chairman Kelley were in favor. SelectrS8aow was opposed. Motion carried on a
vote of 4 to 1.

Letter from Selectmen: Road Agent Lewis would like the prison trusteepaint salt shed. He
requested a letter from the Board to do this. dswhe consensus of the Board to write a letter to
have the prison trustee’s paint the salt shed.

Signs for the Recycling Center: Selectman Soares noted she was working on oneigay for
the Recycling Center. Chairman Kelley noted thayeha traffic problem. Selectman Snow
agreed and explained people are going the wrong Wagy need signage down there to enforce
the rules.

Brownfield sites: Selectman Snow stated he was going to take ddteso Chairman Kelley
replied he has someone coming to a future meetirexplain this. They have been working at
his garage and this is a fantastic deal. Selectammw noted he would be attending at meeting
this week at SNHPC regarding Brownfield sites.

PageB8 of 9



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 042P&0

Warrant Articles: Selectman Snow explained he is going to predemtBoard with some
proposed warrant articles and he would like toisahem. If the Board doesn’t agree they will
go in as a citizen petition. He will be talkinggeople as a private citizen about these articles.

Watershed: Selectman Snow noted they were going to recestatas report on the Southeast
Watershed Association.

Signs: Chief McGillen mentioned the “No Trespassing” Sigire gone at the Recycling Center.
Selectman Soares stated she would take care of it

Police cruiser: Chief McGillen would like to get rid of car fiveThey can’t swap over the new
gear until they know which cruiser they’re gettig)of. He is recommending they get rid of car
five. The Building Inspector is interested in fiae, since he is having issues with his vehicle.
It was the consensus of the Board to move the etgnpin car five to the new cruiser.

Selectman Duarte motioned to adjourn at 8:55 pSmconded by Selectman Robie. All were in
favor. Motion carried.

Respectfully submitted,

Andria Hansen
Recording Secretary

Paged of 9



